
(next page)→ 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors Meeting 

Thursday, April 18, 2024 – 6 pm 
General District Courtroom – Sussex Judicial Center 

15098 Courthouse Road, Sussex VA 23884 
 

ZOOM LINK 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9527387527 

Meeting ID:  952 738 7527 
 

==================================================================== 
 

1. Commencement 

1.01 Call to Order/Determine Quorum 

a. Approval of Board Member(s) Participating by Phone under Board Remote 

Participation Policy 

1.02 The Invocation 

1.03 The Pledge of Allegiance 

1.04 Agenda Amendment(s) 

1.05 Approval of Regular Agenda 

 

2. Approval of Consent Agenda 

2.01 Approval of Minutes:  March 21, 2024 Regular Board Meeting 

2.02 Warrants and Vouchers 

2.03 Treasurer’s Report & Financial Update – for information only  

2.04 Departmental Reports – for information only 

2.05 Budget Resolution for 305 Fund Conversion to Revolving Fund 

 

3. Recognitions/Awards/Presentation  

3.01 Sussex County Secondary Six-Year Plan – George Bowman, VDOT  

3.02 Virginia Business Ready Sites Program (VBRSP) 2023 Grant Award Project Summary 

and 2024 Grant Proposal Summary for the Sussex Megasite – David Conmy and Faith 

McClintic 

 

4. Public Hearing    
4.01 Zoning Amendment #2024-01, Eastern Woodlands Corp., Applicant 

 A. Public Comments 

 B. Board Comments 

 C. Action on Public Hearing Item, if any 

  

5. Appointments   
5.01 Brightpoint Community College Reappointment 

5.02 Crater District Area Agency on Aging Appointment 

 

6. Action Items 
6.01 Consideration of Contract for Professional Architectural/Engineering Services for 

Renovation and Construction of Historic Courthouse and Related Facilities (RFP #2023-

02) 

6.02 Salty Southern Route Tourism Memorandum of Understanding 



6.03 Resolutions for Virginia Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission FY2024 Southern 

Virginia Program: 

 A. Sussex Megasite Infrastructure Planning and Design 

 B. Waverly Business District Revitalization 

6.04 CPMT Position Request 

6.05 Courthouse Heating and Air System Software Replacement 

 

7. Citizens’ Comments  
 

8. Unfinished Business – none 

     

9. New Business – none  

  

10. Board Members Comments 

10.01 Blackwater District 

10.02 Courthouse District 

10.03 Henry District 

10.04 Stony Creek District 

10.05 Wakefield District 

10.06 Waverly District 

10.07 Yale District 

 

11. Closed Session    
11.01 Convene Into Closed Session 

A.  Consultation with the county attorney for legal advice regarding the Blackwater 

zoning, CUP application and siting agreement, pursuant to Va. Code Section 

2.2.3711(A)(8). 

11.02 Reconvene to Open Session 

11.03 Certification 

11.04 Action(s) Resulting from Closed Session 

   

12. Recess/Adjournment  
12.01 Recess/Adjournment 

12.02 Next Regular Meeting, May 16, 2024 @ 6 p.m. 

  

 



  

 

1 | Page – Minutes of March 21, 2024 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

At a Regular Meeting of the 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

Held in the General District Courtroom  

Thursday, March 21, 2024 at 6 pm 

 

 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 

Thomas W. Baicy, III 

C. Eric Fly, Sr. 

Alfred G. Futrell 

Wayne O. Jones 

Phyllis T. Tolliver 

Steve E. White 

 

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT 

Rufus E. Tyler, Sr. 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

Richard Douglas, County Administrator 

Danielle Powell, County Attorney 

Ellen G. Boone, Commissioner of the Revenue 

Deste J. Cox, Treasurer 

Jeffrey Gary, Public Works Director 

Ernest Giles, Sheriff 

Almetia Hardman, Chief Deputy Commonwealth’s Attorney 

Michael Poarch, Planner 

Nick Sheffield, Fire & Rescue Chief 

Regina Sykes, Commonwealth’s Attorney 

Gary M. Williams, Circuit Court Clerk 

Shilton R. Butts, Assistant to the County Administrator/ 

 Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 

1.  Commencement 

 

1.01  Call to Order/Determine Quorum  

 

Chairman Jones called the March 21, 2024 regular meeting of the Sussex County Board of 

Supervisors to order. 

 

1.02  The Invocation 

 

The Invocation was offered by Supervisor Baicy. 

 

1.03  The Pledge of Allegiance 

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all. 



  

 

2 | Page – Minutes of March 21, 2024 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

1.04  Agenda Amendments 

 

Chairman Jones requested to add under Item 8. Unfinished Business, as Item 8.01 Appointments 

to Personnel and Finance Committees.  

 

Supervisor Baicy requested to move under Item 3. Recognition/Awards/Presentation, Item 3.03 

Overview of Historic Courthouse/Complex Site Assessment and Conceptual Design/Cost Estimate 

Process to Item 3.04; and add Item 3.03 Gary Williams, Sussex Circuit Court Clerk. 

 

1.05  Approval of Regular Agenda 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BAICY, seconded by SUPERVISOR TOLLIVER and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approved the March 21, 2024 

regular meeting agenda inclusive of adding under Item 8. Unfinished Business, as Item 8.01 

Appointments to Personnel and Finance Committees and moving under Item 3. 

Recognition/Awards/Presentation, Item 3.03 Overview of Historic Courthouse/Complex Site 

Assessment and Conceptual Design/Cost Estimate Process to Item 3.04; and add Item 3.03 Gary 

Williams, Sussex Circuit Court Clerk.  All Board members present voted aye. 

 

2.  Approval of Consent Agenda 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TOLLIVER, seconded by SUPERVISOR BAICY and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the Consent agenda 

inclusive of the following: (a) February 22 Special (Rescheduled regular) Meeting minutes; (b) the 

Approval of Warrants and Vouchers; (c) the Treasurer’s Report and Financial Update; (d) 

Departmental Reports; and (e) Acceptance of Health Insurance Plan/Rates.  All Board members 

present voted aye. 

 

3.  Recognitions/Awards/Presentation 

 

3.01 RECOGNITION:  Honoring Susan Pope Irving 

 

On February 15, 2024, Susan Irving, the former Mayor of the Town of Waverly, passed.  A 

resolution was prepared recognizing the late Susan Pope Irving for her outstanding efforts as a 

devoted servant and community leader for the Town of Waverly and the Sussex community. 

 

The Board extended their sincerest prayers and condolences to her husband, Mr. Frank Irving, and 

the family for their loss. 

 

Mr. Irving, her family and friends were be in attendance to receive the resolution. 

 

A copy of Resolution recognizing the late Susan Pope Irving and Dr. Leming Support letter for 

resolution were included in the Board packet. 

 



  

 

3 | Page – Minutes of March 21, 2024 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

WHEREAS, Susan Pope Irving, a devoted public servant and community leader, passed 

away February 15, 2024; and 
 

WHEREAS, Susan Pope Irving was a lifelong resident of Waverly, born to the late 

Leverette and Eloise Pope; and 

 

WHEREAS, Susan Pope Irving was elected as Mayor of the Town of Waverly, serving 

from 2000 to 2010; and 

 

WHEREAS, Susan Pope Irving was a long-time member of the Waverly Rescue Squad 

and an Advanced Life Support provider, serving the residents of Sussex County for 17 years, and 

mentoring dozens of members of the Waverly Rescue Squad; and  

 

WHEREAS, in addition to reaching the rank of Captain of the Waverly Rescue Squad, she 

was named Outstanding Squadsman of the Year in 1979 and 1982, and Squadsman of the Year in 

1984; and 

 

WHEREAS, she also chaired Waverly Rescue Squad membership drives and fundraisers 

vital to the operations of this volunteer organization, including the Waverly Labor Day parade and 

festival fundraiser for a number of years; and   

 

WHEREAS, Susan Pope Irving was well known throughout Waverly and Sussex County 

from an early age, helping her father run his local grocery store in Waverly until it closed in 1987; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, Susan Pope Irving was strong in her faith, teaching Sunday school for many 

years at Waverly Baptist Church, and enjoying fellowship and worship as a member of the Waverly 

United Methodist Church; and 

 

WHEREAS, Susan Pope Irving will be remembered for her compassion to others and 

support to her community, and remembered by friends as someone who “gave of herself wherever 

she saw the need,” “kind to everybody,” and “there for others”; and  

 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby 

extends its sincere sympathy on the passing of Susan Pope Irving to husband Frank, sons Greg and 

Matt, stepchildren Mandy and Mark, and other family and friends; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby 

recognizes Susan Pope Irving for her many contributions and years of service to Sussex County 

and its residents; and  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be spread upon the minutes 

of this meeting of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors, this 21st day of March, 2024. 

By general consensus, all Board members present approved the resolution. 

 

302 Waverly Solar Response to Site Screening and Stormwater Management Concerns 

 



  

 

4 | Page – Minutes of March 21, 2024 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

Supervisor Fly requested this item to be placed on the agenda, based on ongoing concerns related 

to vegetative screening and stormwater management at the Waverly Solar site under construction 

along/near Route 40 west of Waverly.   

 

Supervisor Fly discussed and gave a brief summary of the problem of the trees being cut down and 

the buffer.  He also mentioned the amendment to the CUP for this project.   

 

There were discussions of increasing shielding and buffers.  There was also discussion of 

corrective action.  There was also discussion of entrenchment.   

 

There were inquiries of preparation for rain. 

 

Sean Hershberger, along with other representatives of Energix Renewables, were in attendance.  

They provided a progress report and answered questions on the Waverly Solar site.   

 

3.03  Gary Williams, Circuit Court Clerk   

 

The Honorable Gary M. Williams, Circuit Court Clerk, spoke briefly about his concerns regarding 

the 1950 Annex.  He noted that he didn’t want the traffic to County Administration.  Mr. Williams 

noted that he wasn’t consulted. 

 

3.04 Overview of Historic Courthouse/Complex Site Assessment and Conceptual Design/Cost 

Estimate Process 

 

Russell Pearlman, architect, with The Wooten Company, provided an overview of the Historic 

Courthouse/complex site assessment and conceptual design/cost estimate process completed over 

the past couple of years. This presentation was in advance of consideration of contract 

authorization for architectural services for the courthouse renovation/construction project with 

Glave & Holmes.  John Spain with Glave and Holmes was in attendance, as well. 

 

There were discussions of renovation/preservation, Administration building costs, and the 

demolition of 1950 addition.  There was also discussion of affordability noted by Davenport. 

 

There was discussion regarding space, saving integrity and costs.  There was inquiry of whether 

costs were $22 million or $17 million.   

 

There was inquiry of whether any study was done to build new in lieu of renovation. 

 

Mr. Pearlman noted that he spoke with the Circuit Court Clerk.   Mr. William’s concern was not 

losing space.  He noted that Mr. William’s office space is currently 3,000 square ft.  During 

discussion of office space needs, he noted that in the complex site assessment and conceptual 

design, the Clerk’s office space is 4,000 square feet. 

 

He also noted that he listened to the Judges. 

 

4.  Public Hearings 



  

 

5 | Page – Minutes of March 21, 2024 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

There was no Public Hearing. 

 

5.  Appointments 

 

There were no appointments. 

 

6.  Action Items 

 

6.01   Consideration of Contract for Professional Architectural/Engineering Services for 

Renovation and Construction of Historic Courthouse and Related Facilities (RFP #2023-

02) 

 

Administrator Douglas stated that Request for Proposals 2023-02, Professional Architectural/ 

Engineering Services for Renovation and Construction of Historic Courthouse and Related 

Facilities was advertised in December 2023 to solicit proposals regarding the proposed courthouse 

project.  Glave & Holmes, who along with the Wooten Company completed the initial building 

assessment and conceptual planning work related to this project, was the lone firm that submitted 

a proposal by the deadline (another firm submitted after the deadline and was not deemed as 

qualified as Glave & Holmes).  Glave & Holmes has significant experience in major historic 

preservation projects.  Their work with historic properties are highly regarded. 

 

Staff has been negotiating contract fees as outlined in the RFP but has not finalized by the time 

this memo was prepared and plans to share at the board meeting.  Staff is requesting authorization 

to execute a contract with Glave & Holmes for project architectural/engineering services (design, 

bid package, construction administration, etc.). 

 

Copies of Glave & Holmes Proposal and RFP #2023-02 were included in the Board packet. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FUTRELL, seconded by SUPERVISOR TOLLIVER and 

carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby tabled the 

Consideration of Contract for Professional Architectural/Engineering Services for Renovation and 

Construction of Historic Courthouse and Related Facilities (RFP #2023-02).  All Board members 

present voted aye. 

 

7.  Citizens’ Comments 
 

 Susan B. Moore (Wakefield District) – Hunting Ordinance; hunting season return phone 

call. 

 Millard “Pete” Stith (Community Coalition) –Thinking outside the box; suggestions for 

County Administration building and costs. 

 

8.  Unfinished Business  
 

8.01 Adoption of Board Rules and Procedures 

 



  

 

6 | Page – Minutes of March 21, 2024 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

Vice Chairman White noted that under Section 7-2 Standing Committees Roles and Guidelines 

of Board of Supervisors Bylaws, Subsection A. language, “Finance Committee: A Finance 

Committee should be appointed by the Chairman promptly after each annual meeting” should be 

changed to “Finance Committee:  A Finance Committee “shall” be appointed….   

 

Chairman Jones requested this item during agenda amendments to appoint the Personnel and 

Finance Committees.  This item was previously tabled. 

 

Administrator Douglas noted that surrounding localities no longer have Personnel and Finance 

committees. 

 

Chairman Jones appointed Supervisors Baicy, Futrell and Tyler to the Personnel Committee.  

Supervisor Baicy was appointed Chairman of the Personnel Committee. 

 

Chairman Jones appointed Supervisors Tolliver, White and Fly to the Finance Committee.  

Supervisor Tolliver was appointed the Chairman of the Finance Committee. 

 

There was discussion of Section 2-5 Cancellation or Rescheduling of Meetings.  There was 

discussion of if any members of the Board objects, the regularly scheduled meeting may proceed as 

originally planned.  County Attorney Powell interpreted that noted that it stated “may”.  The Chairman 

and the Vice Chairman had the discretion to decide whether to proceed.  She advised and recommended 

striking the sentence in Section 2-5 Cancellation  

 

Supervisor Fly requested to be removed from Virginia’s Gateway Region Board.  He noted that he was 

on other Boards. 

 

A copy of the BOS Bylaws was included in the Board packet. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FUTRELL, seconded by SUPERVISOR WHITE and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the following: 

 

 In Section 7-2 Standing Committees Roles and Guidelines of Board of Supervisors 

Bylaws, Subsection A. language, “Finance Committee: A Finance Committee should be 

appointed by the Chairman promptly after each annual meeting” should be changed to 

“Finance Committee:  A Finance Committee “shall” be appointed….   

 Appointing Supervisors Baicy, Futrell and Tyler to the Personnel Committee.  Supervisor 

Baicy was appointed Chairman of the Personnel Committee. 

 Appointing Supervisors Tolliver, White and Fly to the Finance Committee.  Supervisor 

Tolliver was appointed the Chairman of the Finance Committee. 

 In Section 2-5 Cancellation or Rescheduling of Meetings, striking the sentence, If any 

member of the Board objects, the regularly scheduled meeting may proceed as originally 

planned.  

All Board members present voted aye. 

 

8.02 Stony Creek Volunteer Rescue Squad ERP Compliance Plan of Action 

 



  

 

7 | Page – Minutes of March 21, 2024 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

Vice Chairman White noted that they were working on draft plan.  Vehicle has been purchased.  

Once Stony Creek Volunteer Rescue Squad and Fire and Rescue Chief is complete, it will be 

brought to the Board. 

 

9.  New Business 

 

9.01 Regional Cigarette Tax Opportunity 

 

Administrator Douglas stated that effective July 1, 2020, the Virginia General Assembly 

authorized all counties to levy tax on cigarettes (under previous law, only cities, towns, and two 

counties were authorized to tax cigarettes).  Several counties and cities in the broader region have 

been considering or have committed to a regional cigarette tax, and county staff have been invited 

to participate in an upcoming discussion on potential interest to pursue this regional tax. Staff will 

participate in these discussions if the Board is interested in considering a cigarette tax ordinance 

and participation in a regional cigarette tax program. 

 

Supervisor Fly disclosed that he works for Davis Oil. 

 

There was inquiry as to whether the Region would receive funds from taxes or whether the County 

would receive all funds.  

 

It was recommended to have Treasurer Cox research as to whether it was better to have a County 

cigarette tax or a Regional Cigarette Tax.  It was also recommended to reach out to the towns of 

Wakefield and Waverly. 

 

There was inquiry of employment for the County.  County Attorney Powell noted that the 

employees would not be County employees.  The tax authority would hire employees.  The 

employees would be paid from the revenue received from the taxes. 

 

There was a question/statement regarding local taxes not being on the agenda and not being able 

to amend the agenda due to the full Board not being present.  County Attorney Powell clarified 

that not be able amend the agenda due to the full Board not being present only applies to Special 

meetings. 

 

County Attorney Powell discussed making motions on items discussed during regular meeting that 

aren’t on the agenda. 

  

There was discussion of whether the tax would be a local cigarette tax for the County. 

 

Staff is not requesting formal consideration at this time, but rather a general consensus for staff to 

participate in discussions regarding a potential regional cigarette tax. 

 

Copies of a Cigarette Tax Ordinance, letter regarding Regional Cigarette Tax Board, an example 

of Cigarette Tax Board Agreement, Article 11, Sections 4.11-1 through 17 were included in the 

Board packet. 

 



  

 

8 | Page – Minutes of March 21, 2024 Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FUTRELL, seconded by SUPERVISOR TOLLIVER and 

carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the County 

Administrator to  

Voting aye:  Supervisors Futrell, Jones, Tolliver, White 

Voting nay:  Supervisors Baicy, Fly 

Absent:  Supervisor Tyler 

 

10.  Board Member Comments 
 

10.01  Blackwater District – Agenda and citizens’ comments on each Action Item; citizen has to 

sign up online. 

 

10.02 Courthouse District – Seventh Annual Easter egg hunt 3/30/24 from 1 p.m. -3 p.m.; Sussex 

County pageant – 3/23/24.  

 

10.03 Henry District – absent 

 

10.04 Stony Creek District – Report on County owned property. 

 

10.05 Wakefield District – Reminder of Public Hearing at 4-H Center Monday, 3/25/24 at 6 p.m.; 

addressed statement that he had an assistant; VDOT – Wakefield Safety issue to fix. 

 

10.06  Waverly District – Thanked County Administrator for work with seniors in Wakefield; 

transportation for seniors; thanked Jones Limo Services for transporting seniors. 

 

10.07 Yale District – none for Yale; for Supervisor Baicy- Annual Spring Fling at Stony Creek 

Park – 4/6/24 at 9 a.m. – 3 p.m.; vendors 

 

11. Closed Session 

 

There was no Closed Session. 

 

12.  Adjournment 

 

12.01 Adjournment 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FUTRELL, seconded by SUPERVISOR WHITE and carried:  

RESOLVED that the March 21, 2024 regular meeting of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

hereby adjourned at 7:59 p.m.  All Board members present voted aye. 

 

 











































2.03

Consent Agenda - Page 1

sricks
Highlight



Consent Agenda - Page 2



Consent Agenda - Page 3



Consent Agenda - Page 4



Consent Agenda - Page 5



BUILDING 

INSPECTIONS 

DEPARTMENT 

  April 18, 2024 

Monthly Reports 

2.04 

Consent Agenda - Page 6



BUILoING DEPARTMENT
MATT WESTHEIMER, McP, cBo
BUILDING OFFICIAL
(asozaoazgo

DATE:

TO.

FROM:

SI-,tsJECT

MEMORANDUM

April1,2024

Richard Douglas, County Administrator

Matt Westheimer, Building Ofticial

March 2024 - Monthly Report

Please accept this as the March 2024 update for the Building Department

BUILDING ACTIVITY

March 2024a

o

March 2023

January 2024 - Decernbet 2024 (Yearly totals)

Building
Permits

Electrical
Permits

Plumbing &
Spinkler
Permits

Mechanical
Permits

Field
Inspections

Improvement
Value

Revenue
Generated

20 l3 I 3 l15 $1,107,327.00 s8,496.20

Building
Permits

Electrical
Permits

Plumbing &
Sprinkler
Permits

Mechanical
Permits

Field
Inspections

Improvement
Value

Revenue
Generoled

9 , 6 75 $9,934,635.57 $96,162.E1

Iluilding
Permits

Electrical
Permits

Plumbing &
Sprinkler
Permits

Mechanical
Permits

Field
Inspections

Improvement
Value

Reyenue
Generated

4E 48 1l ,< 280 $12,E07,465.84 $l19,415.88

SussExcour.rryvA. Gov

Inspections completed within 24 hourc For March 100%
Plans reviewed within 10 business dlys For March 100%

I80I

\ CouNrrY oF SussEx, VTRGTNTA
P. O. Box 1 397 SussEx. VTRG|NtA 23884

F 
^x 

(434) 24ffi259

t2

Consent Agenda - Page 7



SUSSEX COUNTY

INSPECTIONS PERFORMED BY DISTRICT

MARCH 2024

INSPECTIONS BY DISTRICT

HENRY

7%

YALE

7% BTACKWATER

LTYo

WAKEFIEI.D

7%

COURTHOUSE

23%

WAVERLY

9%

BTACKWATER 20

COURTHOUSE 26

WAVERTY 10

STONY CREEK 35

WAKEFIETD 8

HENRY 8

YALE 8

DISTRICT INSPECTIONS

STONY CREEK

30%

,_::tttiil.. 

WW

Consent Agenda - Page 8



Sheriff’s Department

April 18, 2024 

Monthly Reports 

Consent Agenda - Page 9



P. O. 

Sheriff E.L. Giles, Sr. 

Sussex County Sheriff’s Office 

“One Family, One Mission, One Goal” 

P.O. B 

P. O.  Box 1326 Sussex, Virginia 23884 
Telephone: 434-246-5000 

Fax: 434-246-5714 
Email: Egiles@susova.us 

Sussex County Sheriff’s Office Monthly Report 

Month of March 2024 

PATROL 

COURTS 

Court: Judges: 

Circuit Court 4 

General District 4 

JDR Court 3 

CALLS FOR SERVICE 

Type: Total: 

Sheriff 1,605 

Fire 64 

Rescue 208 

Animal Control 55 

Town of Wakefield 60 

Traffic 1,135 

TOTAL 3,127 

Court: 
Days of 
Court: 

Circuit Court 4 

General District 12 

JDR Court 5 

Consent Agenda - Page 10



CIVIL 

Fines and Forfeitures $55,338.85 

Sheriff’s Fees $601.00 

Courthouse Security $9,026.14 

JAIL 

During the month of March 2024, our average daily population was 26.65 inmates. The jail 

booked in 45 individuals during March 2024.  

The classification of these inmates as reported by the Commonwealth of Virginia’s LIDS 

computer system is as follows: 

Pre- Trial   35 inmates, having been confined a total of 503 days 

Sentenced Misdemeanant   6 inmates, having been confined a total of 25 days 

Sentenced Felons   9 inmates, having been confined a total of 148 days. 

Others   6 inmates, convicted but not sentenced, etc. 

Weekenders   6 inmates serving a misdemeanor sentence. 

Transports of inmates for various reasons are listed below: 

Court / Jail 17 

Medical 2 

Juvenile 0 

Road Crew 0 

TDO (Mental) 0 

TOTAL 19 

Type: Total: 

Subpoenas Served 333 

Jury Summoned 0 

Criminal Warrants 52 

DMV Notices 10 

Levies 0 

TDO 3 

ECO 0 

Other Civil 136 

Consent Agenda - Page 11



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:   Consent Agenda Item #2.05 
 
Subject:   Sussex Megasite “305 Fund” – Convert to Revolving Fund 
 
Board Meeting Date:  April 18 2024 
 
============================================================================== 
 
Summary:  On February 23, 2023, the Board appropriated $405,000 in general funds through a 
budget amendment for reimbursable grants the County was awarded from the VA Economic 
Development Partnership (VEDP) and VA Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission (TRRC) for 
the Sussex Megasite Master Planning and Conceptual Engineering Design Project. The grant 
includes (1) $247,900 from VEDP, (2) $61,050 from TRRC, and (3) $96,050 from Sussex County. It 
was recently discovered that this budget amendment didn’t establish this as a revolving fund. 
Currently the “305 Fund,” which governs the Sussex Megasite fiscal matters, has a negative 
balance of -$86,427.77. Converting the “305 Fund” into a revolving fund with a cap of $250,000 
will account for this technical matter and allow the balance to temporarily go negative in 
anticipation of reimbursements. For context, as of 4-5-2024, the County has been reimbursed (1) 
$98,900 from VEDP and (2) is anticipating a $50,262.50 reimbursement from TRRC. Additional 
expenses yet to be submitted for reimbursement include (1) $36,935 from VEDP and (2) $2,945 
from TRRC. This budget amendment is a technical matter and DOES NOT obligate the County to 
additional expenses exceeding $405,000. Staff also anticipates using this revolving fund for future 
reimbursable grant applications that are awarded to the County for the Sussex Megasite. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt the budget 
amendment converting the “305 Fund” into a revolving fund with a $250,000 cap. 
 
Attachments:  Excerpt from February 23, 2023, Board of Supervisors Minutes  
 
============================================================================== 

 

ACTION:  That the Board adopt the budget amendment converting the “305 Fund” into a 
revolving fund with a $250,000 cap. 
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 

Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Baicy  ___ ___      Jones ___ ___ 
 
Fly  ___ ___    Tolliver ___ ___  
 
Futrell  ___ ___    Tyler   ___ ___ 

 
    White ___ ___ 

Consent Agenda Item – Page 12 



1 | Page – Minutes of February 23, 2023 Rescheduled Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

At a Rescheduled Meeting of the  

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

Held in the General District Courtroom on 

Thursday, February 23, 2023 at 6 pm 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 

C. Eric Fly, Sr.

A. G. Futrell

Debbie P. Jones

Wayne O. Jones

Susan M. Seward

Rufus E. Tyler, Sr.

Steve White, Tie Breaker

STAFF PRESENT: 

Richard Douglas, County Administrator 

David Conmy, Deputy County Administrator & Director of Economic Development 

Jeff Gore, County Attorney 

Ellen G. Boone, Commissioner of the Revenue 

Deste J. Cox, Treasurer 

Eric Danuser, IT Manager (Virtual) 

G. Reid Foster, Public Safety Coordinator (Virtual)

Ernest Giles, Sheriff

Faith McClintock, Economic Development Consultant

Michael Kessinger, Sergeant

Kelly W. Moore, Finance Director (Virtual)

Michael Poarch, Planner

Beverly Walkup, Planning Director

LaSonya White, Virginia Cooperative Extension

Shilton R. Butts, Assistant to the County Administrator/

         Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

1. Commencement

1.01  Call to Order/Determine Quorum (6:17 p.m.) 

Chairman W. Jones called the February 23, 2023 rescheduled regular meeting of the Sussex 

County Board of Supervisors to order. 

1.02  The Invocation 

The Invocation was offered by Supervisor Seward. 

1.03  The Pledge of Allegiance 

Consent Agenda - Page 13



8 | Page – Minutes of February 23, 2023 Rescheduled Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

County Administrator Douglas noted that there is a vacancy on the District 19 Community 

Services Board.  A new appointment will need to be made.  Per D19 CSB, this appointment does 

not have to be the Director of Social Services.  The new appointment will be a three year term, 

starting immediately, expiring February 28, 2026 should the appointment be made at the February 

meeting.  (The three year term will be determined by the month of the appointment per D19 CSB.) 

The Board member position description, By Laws and Meeting Schedule were included in the 

Board packet. 

This item was tabled. 

6. Action Items

6.01 VEDP Business Ready Grant Overview & Related Budget Amendments 

David Conmy stated that Sussex County was awarded $247,900 and $61,050 from the Virginia 

Economic Development Partnership (VEDP) and the Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission 

(TRRC), respectively, for various master planning and conceptual engineering design activities to 

advance the shovel-readiness of the Sussex Mega Site. A local match of $61,050 is required; 

however, staff recommends the Board appropriate an additional $35,000 for two activities VEDP 

inadvertently omitted from the approved program. This projects is intended to be managed through 

the County’s existing relationship with Virginia’s Gateway Region, Spectrum Growth Solutions, 

and the County’s on-call engineering firms. Because these are reimbursable grants, two budget 

amendments are needed to appropriate (1) $405,000 for the full cost of the project and (2) $15,000 

for continuation of Spectrum Growth Solutions’ services to the County for 2023. 

Mr. Conmy gave an overview and the activities and budget 

There was discussion of whether Data Centers be useful in the Mega Site. 

Staff recommends the Board adopts the proposed budget amendments. 

Budget Amendment Resolutions, VEDP VBRSP Award Letter, TRRC Award Letter, and Project 

Budget were included in the Board packet. 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER, seconded by SUPERVISOR SEWARD and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby adopts Resolutions #23-14 

FY23 Budget Amendment for the VEDP VBRSP Sussex Mega Site; and 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors that the following budget 

amendment for the Mega Site (Fund#305) be and hereby is made for the period of July 1, 2022 

through June 30, 2023.  This resolution will approve and appropriate funds for the VEDP 

VBRSP Sussex Mega Site Development Grant FY23.  

FUND # 100 GENERAL FUND 

Consent Agenda - Page 14



9 | Page – Minutes of February 23, 2023 Rescheduled Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

REVENUE 

Fund 305 VEDP $247,900 

Fund 305 TRRC $61,050 

Fund 135 Local Reserves $96,050 

Total Revenues $405,000 

EXPENDITURE 

Fund 305 Mega Site $405,000 

Total Expenditures $405,000 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors that the following 

Resolution #23-15 budget amendment for the General Government Administration function be 

and hereby is made for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023.  This resolution will 

appropriate local reserve funds to contract with Spectrum Growth Solutions. 

FUND # 100 GENERAL FUND 

REVENUE 

Fund 135 Local Reserves $15,000 

Total Revenues $15,000 

EXPENDITURE 

Fund 100 Administration $15,000 

Total Expenditures  $15,000 

Voting aye:  Supervisors Fly, Futrell, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward, Tyler 

Voting nay:  none 

6.02 Fire Engine Acquisition (Stony Creek and Wakefield VFDs) – Financing Resolution 

County Administrator Douglas stated that a revised resolution is attached for your consideration 

that provides Board approval of additional lease purchase financing under the existing master lease 

agreement with Bank of America.  Specifically, the resolution would begin the process of securing 

up to $1,850,000 in financing for two fire engines serving the Wakefield and Stony Creek 

Volunteer Fire Departments, as identified in the County’s Public Safety Capital Plan.  This is the 

same process followed for the recent acquisition of fire engines for Jarratt, Courthouse, and 

Waverly Volunteer Fire Departments, and an ambulance for the Stony Creek Volunteer Rescue 

Squad.   

The Finance Committee recommended moving forward with this process at its last meeting.  

Roland Kooch with Davenport will be present to answer any questions regarding this process. 

Staff recommends the Board adopts the attached resolution. 

Resolution approving additional lease purchase financing under existing Master Lease Agreement 

and memo from the Public Safety Coordinator were included in the Board packet. 

Consent Agenda - Page 15



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:   Recognitions/Awards/Presentations Item #3.01 
 
Subject: Sussex County Secondary Six-Year Plan – George Bowman, VDOT 
 
Board Meeting Date:  April 18 2024 
 
============================================================================== 
 
Summary:   George Bowman with VDOT will present proposed transportation project priorities 
for the Sussex County 2024 Secondary Six-Year Plan.  A public hearing is not required but 
recommended by staff, and can be scheduled for the May regular meeting if the board is in 
agreement.  Also based on input from the board, staff will prepare a resolution adopting this plan 
for consideration at the May regular meeting.   
 
Recommendation:  No action required at this time, but staff recommends a public hearing be 
scheduled for the May regular meeting. 
 
Attachments:  2024 Sussex County Project Priorities List; 2023 Six-Year Plan Resolution; 
Map/Description of Unpaved Roads Eligible for Paving  
 
============================================================================== 

 

ACTION:  N/A   
 
               

               

               

 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 

Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Baicy  ___ ___     Jones  ___ ___ 
 
Fly  ___ ___    Tolliver ___ ___  
 
Futrell  ___ ___    Tyler   ___ ___ 

 
    White ___ ___ 

 

Recognition - Page 1



Virginia Department of Transportation 

Proposed Secondary Six Year Plan & Budget 

2024 Sussex County Project Priorities 

 

 

Priority #1: Route 609 (Butts Road) reconstruction and surface, from Route 697 (Rowehampton Road) to 

Route 735 (Courthouse Road) 

 

Priority #2: Route 735 (Courthouse Road) at Route 631 (Gray Road) reconstruction/intersection 

improvements 

 

Priority #3: Unpaved Roads Balance Entry (to be prioritized but may include the following): 

a) Route 640 (Cabin Stick Road) from Route 637 to Route 626 

b) Route 636 (Longevity Road) from Route 626 to Route 40 

c) Route 632 (Hunting Quarter Road) from Route 608 to Route 634 

d) Route 611 (Mill Path Road) from Route 610 to Route 609 

e) Route 604 (Chinquapin Road) from Route 606 to Route 621 

Recognition - Page 2



RESOLUTION #23-58 

Virginia Department of Transportation 

Proposed Secondary Six Year Plan and Budget 

 

WHEREAS, Section 33.1-23 and 33.1-23.4 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, provides 

the opportunity for each County to work with the Virginia Department of Transportation in 

developing a Secondary Six Year Road Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, this Board has previously agreed to assist in the preparation of this Plan, in 

accordance with the Virginia Department of Transportation policies and procedures and 

participated in a public hearing on the Proposed FY24 on June 15, 2023, after duly advertised so 

that all citizens of the County had the opportunity to participate in said hearing and to make 

comments and recommendations concerning the proposed Plan and Priority List; and 

 

WHEREAS, Gerald Kee, of the Virginia Department of Transportation, appeared before the Board 

and recommended approval of the Six Year Plan for Secondary Roads and the Construction 

Priority List for Sussex County; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Priority List is as follows: 

 

Priority #1: Route 735 (Courthouse Road) Reconstruction and drainage improvements on Route 

735 (Sussex), to Route 660 (Gilliam Road) and Route 631 (Gray Road)    

 

Priority #2: Glyndon Lane and Carver Lane; Glyndon Lane and Carver Lane Rural Addition, 

Various  

 

Priority #3: Route 609 Reconstruction and Surface; treat non-hard surface road; Row 697 

Rowehampton Road, to Route 735 Courthouse Road 

 

Priority #4:  Unpaved Roads Balance Entry, Statewide 

 

Priority #5: Future Unpaved Funds:  Year 4 to Year 6  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that since the plan appears to be in the best interest of 

the Secondary Road System, said Secondary Six Year Plan is hereby approved as presented at the 

public hearing.  

 

 

   
  

Recognition - Page 3



Longevity Road

Cabin Stick Road

Hunting Quarter Road

Mill Path Road

Chinquapin Road

Priority Unpaved State Routes

Road 
Names/Route

Traffic Count-
Vehicles per Day

(VPD)

Chinquapin Road/
Rt. 604

90

Mill Path Road/ 
Rt. 611

70

Hunting Quarter 
Road/ 
Rt. 632

90

Longevity Road/ 
Rt. 636

80

Cabin Stick Road/ 
Rt. 640

70

*Minimum of 50 vpd is needed to 
utilize unpaved road funds

County of Sussex

“Rooted in the past… Growing for the Future!”

Recognition - Page 4



Mill Path Road/ Rt. 611

From Grizzard Road (Rt.609) to 
Harrell Road (Rt. 610)

Traffic Count-
Vehicles per Day

(VPD)

70

Number of
Residences

4

Election District Henry

Recognition - Page 5



Hunting Quarter Road/ Rt. 632

From Hickory Hill Road (Rt.608) to 
Old Forty Road(Rt. 634)

Traffic Count-
Vehicles per Day

(VPD)

90

Number of
Residences

16

Election District Yale

Recognition - Page 6



Longevity Road/ Rt. 636

From Courthouse Road(Rt.626) to 
Sussex Drive(Rt. 40)

Traffic Count-
Vehicles per Day

(VPD)

80

Number of
Residences

8

Election District Courthouse

Recognition - Page 7



Cabin Stick Road/ Rt. 640

From Railroad Bed Road(Rt.637) to 
Courthouse Road(Rt. 626)

Traffic Count-
Vehicles per Day

(VPD)

70

Number of
Residences

3

Election District Courthouse

Recognition - Page 8



Chinquapin Road/ Rt. 604

From Beaver Dam Road(Rt.606) to 
Harrell Mill Road(Rt. 621)

Traffic Count-
Vehicles per Day

(VPD)

90

Number of
Residences

1

Election District Yale/Wakefield

Recognition - Page 9



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Recognitions/Awards/Presentations Item #3.02 

Subject:    Virginia Business Ready Sites Program (VBRSP) 2023 Grant Award Project Summary 
and 2024 Grant Proposal Summary for the Sussex Megasite 

Board Meeting Date:  April 18 2024 

============================================================================== 
Summary:   In 2022, Sussex County applied for and received funding from the VA Economic 
Development Partnership (VEDP) and VA Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission (TRRC) for 
master planning, conceptual engineering design, and other due diligence activities for the Sussex 
Megasite. Many of these activities were done to provide a "fresh look" at the property and 
evaluate critical infrastructure needs, especially after the County's loss of Project Glove. The 
project is nearly complete, and the deliverables from this effort have been informative, 
beneficial, and invaluable in identifying important next steps to advance the Sussex Megasite and 
increase its high-win potential. Moreover, they have helped develop a compelling and strategic 
vision for the site going forward. 

Recommendation:  None – for informational purposes only 

Attachment: None: a copy of the presentation will be shared with the Board at the meeting. 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:  That the Board   

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Fly ___ ___ W. Jones ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

D. Jones ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

White  ___ ___ 
(Tie Breaker)  

Recognition - Page 10



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Public Hearing Item #4.01 

Subject:  Zoning Amendment #2024-01, Eastern Woodlands Corp., Applicant   

Board Meeting Date:  April 18 2024 

============================================================================== 

Summary:  Enclosed is the Application of Eastern Woodlands Corp. to rezone 4.323 acres from 
Conditional-Planned Unit Development (C-PUD) to Residential Estate (R-E), Cabin Point Road, 
Courthouse Election District.  The applicant is requesting to rezone 4.323 acres to create up to 3 
residential lots.  The lots will front Cabin Point Road and will be served by public water and sewer. 

Recommendation:  The Planning Commission recommended approval of the application (7-0). 

Attachment:    Staff Report 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:  That the Board approves Zoning Amendment #2024-01 Application, Eastern Woodlands 
Corp., Applicant, to rezone 4.323 acres from Conditional-Planned Unit Development (C-PUD) to 
Residential Estate (R-E), Cabin Point Road, Courthouse Election District.   

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Baicy ___ ___ Jones ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Toliver ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

White ___ ___ 

Public Hearing - Page 1

sricks
Highlight



Public Hearing - Page 2



Public Hearing - Page 3



Public Hearing - Page 4



Public Hearing - Page 5



Public Hearing - Page 6



Public Hearing - Page 7



Public Hearing - Page 8



Public Hearing - Page 9



Public Hearing - Page 10



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item: Appointments #5.01 
 
Subject:   Brightpoint Community College Reappointment 
 
Board Meeting Date:  April 18 2024 
   
============================================================================== 
 
Summary:  Dr. Lisa Winfield’s term is due to expire June 30, 2024 on the Brightpoint Community 
College Board.  A letter was received from Mr. William F. Traylor requesting her reappointment.   
This will be Dr. Winfield’s second four year term.  The term will run from July 1, 2024 through 
June 30, 2028.   
 
Staff has spoken with Dr. Winfield.  She is willing to continue to serve, if reappointed. 
 
Recommendation: That the Board reappoints Dr. Lisa Winfield to the Brightpoint Community 
College Board, with a term running from July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2028. 
 
Attachment:  A copy of letter from Mr. William F. Traylor, dated March 18, 2024 
 
============================================================================== 

 

ACTION:   That the Board reappoints Dr. Lisa Winfield to the Brightpoint Community College 
Board, with a term running from July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2028. 
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 

Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Baicy  ___ ___    Jones  ___ ___  
 
Fly  ___ ___    Toliver  ___ ___ 
  
Futrell  ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
 
    White  ___ ___ 

     
 



brightpoint.edu 

 

800 Charter Colony Parkway 

Midlothian, VA 23114 

 
March 18, 2024 

 
Mr. Wayne O. Jones 

Chair, Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

P.O. Box 1397 

Sussex, Virginia 23884 

 

Dear Mr. Jones: 

I am writing to request that Dr. Lisa Winfield be reappointed to the Brightpoint Community College Board 

to serve a second four-year term. She is currently serving her first four-year term on the College Board. If 

her reappointment meets with the approval of the Board of Supervisors, the second term would run from 

July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2028. 

Should you need additional information from us, please do not hesitate to let me know. My email address is 

ftaylor@brightpoint.edu, and my telephone number is 804-370-5076. I will look forward to hearing from 

you regarding this reappointment. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Mr. William F. Taylor 

Director, Governmental and Administrative Affairs 

 

c: Mr. Richard Douglas, County Administrator, Sussex County 

 Mr. Kenneth Pritchett, Chair, Brightpoint Community College Board

 



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item: Appointments #5.02 
 
Subject:   Crater District Area Agency on Aging Appointment 
 
Board Meeting Date:  April 18 2024 
   
============================================================================== 
 
Summary:  Supervisor Futrell does not wish to continue to serve as Sussex’s representative for 
Crater District Area Agency on Aging.   
 
An appointment will need to be made for an unexpired term ending in December 31, 2024. 
 
Recommendation: That the Board makes an appointment to fill the unexpired term ending in 
December 31, 2024. 
 
Attachment:  none 
 
============================================================================== 

 

ACTION:   That the Board makes an appointment to fill the unexpired term ending in December 
31, 2024. 
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 

Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Baicy  ___ ___    Jones  ___ ___  
 
Fly  ___ ___    Toliver  ___ ___ 
  
Futrell  ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
 
    White  ___ ___ 

     
 



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:   Action Item #6.01 
 
Subject: Consideration of Contract for Professional Architectural/Engineering Services for 

Renovation and Construction of Historic Courthouse and Related Facilities (RFP 
#2023-02) 

 
Board Meeting Date:  April 18 2024 
============================================================================== 
 
Summary: This action item was tabled after discussion at the March regular board meeting.  
Andrew Moore with Glave & Holmes will be present to answer any questions about their proposal, 
which is attached for your review (revised to reflect a $3,815 adjustment for surveying services, 
for a total cost of $2,056,595).  
 
Request for Proposals 2023-02—Professional Architectural/Engineering Services for Renovation 
and Construction of Historic Courthouse and Related Facilities was advertised in December 2023 
to solicit proposals regarding the proposed courthouse project.  Glave & Holmes, who along with 
the Wooten Company completed the initial building assessment and conceptual planning work 
related to this project, was the lone firm that submitted a proposal by the deadline (another firm 
submitted after the deadline and was not deemed as qualified as Glave & Holmes).  Glave & 
Holmes has significant experience in major historic preservation projects and is highly regarded 
for their work with historic properties.  Staff is requesting authorization to execute a contract 
with Glave & Holmes for project architectural/engineering services (design, bid package, 
construction administration, etc.). 
 
Recommendation:  That the Board of Supervisors authorize the County Administrator and 
County Attorney to prepare and execute a contract with Glave & Holmes for 
architectural/engineering services related to the courthouse project, for a cost not to exceed 
$2,056,595, plus $100,000 for project contingencies and reimbursable expenses. 
 
Attachment: Proposal for Professional Design and Construction Phase Services 
============================================================================== 
ACTION:  That the Board authorize the County Administrator and County Attorney to prepare 
and execute a contract with Glave & Holmes for architectural/engineering services related to the 
courthouse project, for a cost not to exceed $2,056,595, plus $100,000 for project contingencies 
and reimbursable expenses. 
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 
Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
Baicy  ___ ___      Jones  ___ ___ 
Fly  ___ ___    Tolliver ___ ___  
Futrell  ___ ___    Tyler   ___ ___ 
    White ___ ___ 

Action Items - Page 1



 

 

Elevating the Human Spirit  |  glaveandholmes.com  |  804.649.9303  |  2101 East Main Street, Richmond, VA 23223 

 

1

 

 

15 March 2024 Revised 3/15/2024 
  
Richard Douglas 
Sussex County Administrator 
20135 Princeton Road 
P.O. Box 1397 
Sussex, Virginia 23834 
 
 
Project: Sussex County Renovation and Construction of Historic Courthouse and Related Facilities 
G&H Proposal Number: 23109 
Sussex County RFP: #2023-02 
 
Re: Proposal for Professional Design and Construction Phase Services Revised 
 
Dear Mr. Douglas, 
 
We are pleased to hear that Sussex County has taken the decision to renovate and expand its county courthouse 
facilities.  We are also excited to have the opportunity to help update and enhance the County’s civic center. 

Based on the terms of RFP #2023-02, our discussions, and the outcome of the Concept Design and 
Programming Study presented to the Board of Supervisors in August 2023 , Glavé & Holmes Architecture (G&H) 
is pleased to present this proposal letter to Sussex County, Virginia (Owner) for the architectural and engineering 
services related to Sussex County Renovation and Construction of Historic Courthouse and Related Facilities 
(the Project). 

 

1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

We understand the Project to consist of the design and construction phase services for the following: Phase 1 - 
renovation of the existing Treasurer/Commissioner of the Revenue building; Phase 2 – construction of a new 
public works building;  Phase 3 - renovation of the Clerk of Court office and adjacent former administrative 
building with new construction connecting the two buildings; and Phase 4 - renovations to the historic 
courthouse along with construction of an administrative addition including demolition of existing 1950s 
addition. The Project scope is generally defined in the Concept Design presentation to the Board of Supervisors 
(BoS) dated 8/17/2023, the programming document dated 8/11/2023 and the Site Assessment Report dated 
4/28/2023, attached for reference. 

The construction budget for the Project is anticipated to be $17,213,254.00, based on the conceptual estimate 
prepared by Downey & Scott. 

The construction will be divided into four phases under one construction contract; the phases.  We understand 
the construction contract will be awarded by competitive bid to a contractor drawn from a pre-qualified list of 
General Contractors. 

For this Project, we propose to subcontract with Wooten for civil engineering; Springpoint Structural for 
structural engineering; Inversity Consulting Engineers for HVAC, electrical, plumbing and fire protection 
engineering; GHD for security, audio-visual and IT systems engineering and Downey & Scott for cost estimating. 
We have successfully worked with each of these firms in the past and are confident that we have assembled an 
excellent team for the Project. 

 

 

2. PROJECT SCOPE OF SERVICES AND DELIVERABLES 

Action Items - Page 2Action Items - Page 2



 

 

 

 

2

For this Project, we have divided the services into phases as follows: 

A. Schematic Design (SD) 

a. Generally, we will provide customary services in accordance with the scope defined in the AIA 
Document B101- 2017 Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect for architectural, 
civil, structural, HVAC, electrical, plumbing, fire protection and low voltage systems services for the 
Project. 

b. We will meet with the Owner to confirm the program for the Project and to develop Schematic 
Design floor plans for that program. 

c. We have included up to three (3) in-person meetings to be held in Sussex County with the Owner. 
Alternatively, these meetings can be held virtually. 

d. We have included colored presentation images of the floor plans and exterior (2D) sufficient to 
convey the design intent.  For Phase 4, we will create 3D images of the building exterior to confirm 
building massing. 

e. Deliverables: Presentation Drawings and Schematic Design Documents (drawings and design 
narrative) in digital, PDF format. 

B. Design Development (DD) 

a. Generally, we will provide customary services in accordance with the scope defined in the AIA 
Document B101- 2017 Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect for Core & Shell, 
and engineering services for architectural, structural, HVAC, electrical, plumbing, fire protection and 
low voltage systems services for the Project. 

b. We have included up to three (3) in-person meetings to be held in Sussex County with the Owner. 
Alternatively, these meetings can be held virtually. 

c. We will update the presentation drawings from Schematic Design to convey the design intent. 

d. Deliverables: Presentation Drawings and Design Development Documents (drawings and updated 
design narrative) in digital, PDF format. 

C. Construction Documents (CD) 

a. Generally, we will provide customary services in accordance with the scope defined in the AIA 
Document B101- 2017 Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect. 

b. We have included up to three (3) in-person meetings to be held in Sussex County with the Owner. 
Alternatively, these meetings can be held virtually. 

c. Deliverables: Construction Documents for permitting and construction of the Project in digital, PDF 
format, including drawings and project manual 

D. Bidding/Negotiation Phase (Bid) 

a. Generally, we will provide customary services in accordance with the scope defined in the AIA 
Document B101- 2017 Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect for competitive 
bidding. 

b. We have included up to two (2) in-person meetings to be held in Sussex County with the Owner and 
Bidders. Alternatively, these meetings can be held virtually. 

E. Construction Contract Administration (CCA) 

a. Generally, we will provide customary services in accordance with the scope defined in the AIA 
Document B101- 2017 Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect. 

b. We have included customary Construction Phase services, including attendance at on-site 
construction progress meetings, reviewing the progress of construction, answering Contractor 
Requests for Information, issuing clarifications to the Construction Documents, reviewing Contractor 
Submittals, and inspecting the Work for Substantial and Final Completion (i.e. “Punch List.”) 

c. Based on conceptual discussions with Downey & Scott, we have assumed a construction duration of 
nineteen (19) months (Construction Start through Final Completion, assuming some phases to occur 

Action Items - Page 3Action Items - Page 3



 

 

 

 

3

concurrently) and have included two on-site construction meetings / site visits every month for the 
duration of construction, for a total of thirty-eight (38) meetings. 

d. We have included five (5) construction completion inspections (i.e. punch outs) to establish 
Substantial Completion and Final Completion, assuming some phases to be constructed 
concurrently. 

F. Supplemental Services: 

a. Cost Consulting: Through our subconsultant Downey & Scott and in accordance with the County’s 
RFP, G&H will provide independent cost estimates at the end of schematic and construction 
document phase of design (SD and CD). We have included one (1) virtual meeting per phase with 
the Owner, Contractor and Downey & Scott to answer questions and to reconcile the independent 
estimate with the Contractor’s estimate. 

b. Survey Services: Through our sub-consultant Wooten, G&H will provide a sealed topographic 
survey indicating parcel line data, tied to the Virginia State Plane Coordinate system and locating 
first floor elevations of buildings within the survey limits. Refer to attached Survey Limits Exhibit. 

c. Geotechnical Services: Through our subconsultant Wooten, G&H will provide a geotechnical 
report based on field and laboratory testing consisting of 280 feet of CPT testing (7 CPT 
Soundings) of the project site.  The report will provide recommendations for site preparation, 
foundation recommendations and an estimate of the Seismic Site Class along with other findings. 
Refer to attached Geotechnical Test Location Plan. 

d. Fire Flow Test & Modeling Services: Through our subconsultant Wooten, G&H will provide analysis 
of pressure capacity for fire flow as required by the Virginia Statewide Unified Building Code. 

 

3. SCHEDULE 

Upon receipt of your approval to this proposal, we we will finalize a mutually acceptable schedule. Our 
preliminary schedule, based on a Notice-To-Proceed by Monday, April 1, 2024, and our understanding of the 
work and site plan approval process, indicates the following approximate durations and milestones: 

SD Completion: Mid-June 2024 (10 weeks) 

DD Completion: End of October 2024 (20 weeks) 

CD Completion: End of May 2025 (30 weeks) 

Bidding/Permitting: Mid  July 2025 (6 weeks) 

Construction: Mid of July 2025– Mid of February 2027 (19 months) 

  

 

4. QUALIFICATIONS & CLARIFICATIONS 

A. The following scope of services are not included in this proposal: 

a. Selections or specifications of furnishings, fixtures and equipment (FF&E). 

b. Distributed Antenna System (DAS) for building cell coverage or for Public Safety 
communications.  DAS can be designed for an additional fee. 

c. Landscape design.  

d. Commercial kitchen hoods or grease interceptors 

e. Specialized HVAC systems for archives or museum artifacts 

f. Non-water fire suppression systems 

g. Multiple construction packages 

Action Items - Page 4Action Items - Page 4



 

 

 

 

4

h. Certifications related to sustainability or energy efficiency, such as LEED, Green Globes or WELL 

B. We have included performance criteria for a fire protection system for the building. The design of the 
system will be performed by a design/build contractor as a delegated design element in the Project. 

C. We have calibrated our services with the assumption that construction will be procured under a single 
construction contract by pre-qualified General Contractor’s bidding (i.e. low-bid selection at the General 
Contractor level) basis. 

 

 

5. COST OF SERVICES 

Glavé & Holmes Architecture, P.C. will provide the services indicated in this proposal for the following stipulated 
sum, plus normal and customary Reimbursable Expenses at cost x 1.15. Reimbursable Expenses include printing, 
mileage, travel expenses, meals, postage/delivery, and similar project related expenses. 

Basic Services Phase Design Fee 
Schematic Design Phase $236,575 
Design Development Phase $477,410 
Construction Document Phase 
Bidding/Negotiation Phase 
Construction Contract Administration Phase 

$623,875 
$35,900 

$576,520 
 

Total Basic Services Fee $1,950,280 
 
 

 

Supplemental Services Design Fee 
Record Documents 
Cost Estimating 

$11,720 
$37,080 

Survey Services $23,940$27750 
Geotechnical Services 
Fire-Flow Test Modeling 

$26,470 
$3,295 

Total Basic Services Fee $102,505 
 
Total Services Fee 

 
$2,052,785$2,056,595 

 

We estimate reimbursable expenses will not exceed $10,000. 

Additional Services not contained in this proposal, when authorized by the Owner, shall be compensated on an 
hourly basis using hourly rates contained in Hourly Billing Rates Schedule in effect at the date of the additional 
services proposal or on the basis of a negotiated stipulated sum. 

Prices contained in this proposal are valid for sixty (60) days from the proposal date. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6. TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Action Items - Page 5Action Items - Page 5



 

 

 

 

5

We understand that the Owner intends to contract for the services described in this proposal using a standard 
AIA Form of Agreement, modified to reflect the services of this proposal and certain Owner-initiated 
amendments. Upon acceptance of this proposal, we will draft a suitable agreement for execution. 
 
We are excited to be involved with realizing your vision for the Sussex County Courthouse Complex and we look 
forward to working with you.  Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call us at (804) 649-9303. 

 
 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
  
Andrew B, Moore, AIA 
Senior Principal 
for Glavé & Holmes Architecture P.C. 
 
Encl: 

• Concept Design presentation to the Board of Supervisors(BoS) dated 8/17/2023 
• Programming Report dated 8/11/2023  
• Site Assessment Report dated 4/28/2023 
• Survey Limits Exhibit dated 3/14/2024 
• Geotechnical Test Location Plan dated 2/23/2024 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Action Items - Page 6Action Items - Page 6



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:   Action Item #6.02 
 
Subject:  Salty Southern Route (SSR) Memorandum of Understanding 
 
Board Meeting Date:  April 18 2024 
============================================================================== 
Summary: On November 16, 2023, staff presented an overview of The Salty Southern Route (SSR) 
to the Board of Supervisors. The SSR is an agritourism program jointly supported by the following 
localities: City of Franklin, Southampton County, Town of Smithfield, Isle of Wight County, City of 
Suffolk, and Surry County. The SSR seeks to promote the rich history of the region’s peanuts, salt-
cured hams, and pork products, but also attractions, shopping, accommodations, and local 
dining. Each community contributes financial and administrative support to sustain the SSR. 
  
In order to formally join the SSR, the BOS would need to adopt the associated ordinance, which 
would also authorize the County Administrator to execute the Tourism Memorandum of 
Agreement on behalf of the BOS. Each participating locality shall, subject to annual appropriation, 
contribute funds to further advance and finance promotional and marketing efforts of the SSR 
according to the following schedule: 

 FY2024: $1,500 

 FY2025: $1,600 

 FY2026: $1,700 

 FY2027: $1,800 

 FY2029: $1,900 
Additionally, the Agreement establishes the Salty Southern Route Joint Committee to include one 
tourism official from each participating locality that would be tasked with: 

 Determining the most appropriate and efficient marketing strategies; 

 Reviewing and approving expenditures that promote the Salty Southern Route; 

 Reviewing and approving contracts to promote the Salty Southern Route; and 

 Developing a mechanism to capture statistical data on the effectiveness of the marketing 
efforts 

 

Recommendation:  Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopts the Ordinance. 
 

Attachments: Ordinance to Approve the Tourism Memorandum Agreement; a Joint Agreement 
Between the Counties of Sussex, Surry, Isle of Wight, the City of Suffolk, and the 
Franklin/Southampton Economic Development and Tourism Memorandum of Agreement 
============================================================================== 
ACTION:  That the Board adopt the Ordinance #24-02.   
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
Baicy  ___ ___      Jones  ___ ___ 
Fly  ___ ___    Tolliver ___ ___  
Futrell  ___ ___    Tyler   ___ ___ 
    White ___ ___ 

Action Items - Page 7



 

Action Items - Page 8



AN ORDINANCE #24-02 TO APPROVE THE TOURISM MEMORANDUM 

AGREEMENT; A JOINT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTIES OF SUSSEX, 

SURRY, ISLE OF WIGHT, THE CITY OF SUFFOLK, AND THE 

FRANKLIN/SOUTHAMPTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT. 

 

WHEREAS, the Counties of Surry, and Isle of Wight, and the City of Suffolk and the 

Franklin/Southampton Economic Development Inc., jointly promote tourism in the region 

through the Salty Southern Route Tourism Memorandum of Agreement (“Agreement”); and  

WHEREAS, through the Agreement, the localities pool their financial and administrative 

resources to promote the region’s assets relative to pork and peanut production as well as 

attractions, shopping, accommodations and local dining along the “Salty Southern Route” 

throughout each locality; and 

WHEREAS, Sussex County desires to participate in the “Salty Southern Route” and approve the 

Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, Section 15.2-1300 of the Code of Virginia, provides that local governments may 

by ordinance enter into agreements for the joint or cooperative exercise of any power, privilege 

or authority which each is capable of exercising individually; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County of Sussex Board of Supervisors, by adoption of this ordinance, seeks to 

enter into the Agreement to assist in the promotion of its assets relative to pork and peanut 

production as well as attractions, shopping, accommodations and local dining along the “Salty 

Southern Route.” 

NOW WHEREFORE, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Sussex, Virginia, hereby: 

§1. Approves entering into the Tourism Memorandum of Agreement; and 

§2. Authorizes the County Administrator to execute the Agreement on behalf of the Board of 

Supervisors. 

Adopted by the Board of Supervisors ___________________, 2024. 

 

      _______________________________________ 

        Chairman, Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

         

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

Action Items - Page 9



TOURISM MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 

THIS TOURISM MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT (hereinafter "Tourism MOA") is 

made and entered into this day of __________, 2024, by and among FRANKLIN 

SOUTHAMPTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, INC. ("Franklin/Southampton"), SURRY 

COUNTY, VIRGINIA ("Surry"), CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA ("Suffolk"), SUSSEX 

COUNTY (“Sussex”) and ISLE OF WIGHT COUNTY, VIRGINIA ("Isle of Wight"), each of 

which is hereinafter referred to as a “Participating Entity", and all of which are hereinafter referred 

to as "Participating Entities". 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Section 15.2-1300 of the Virginia Code provides that any power, privilege or 

authority exercised or capable of exercise by any political subdivision of the Commonwealth of 

Virginia may be exercised and enjoyed jointly with any other political subdivision of the 

Commonwealth having a similar power, privilege or authority pursuant to agreements with one 

another for joint action pursuant to the provisions of that section; and 

WHEREAS, any two or more political subdivisions may enter into agreements with one 

another for joint action pursuant to the provisions of Section 15.2-1300 of the Virginia Code 

provided that the participating political subdivisions shall approve such agreement before the 

agreement may enter into force; and 

WHEREAS, the Participating Entities have determined to jointly participate in the 

promotion of the Salty Southern Route by pooling their financial and administrative resources to 

promote the region's assets relative to pork and peanut production as well as attractions, shopping, 

accommodations and local dining along the "Salty Southern Route" throughout each locality; and 

WHEREAS, the Participating Entities desire to enter into this Tourism MOA and set forth 

the basic parameters of their relationship in said endeavor as more specifically set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and covenants set forth herein, the 

Participating Entities agree as follows: 

1. PURPOSE. The Participating Entities seek to pool their financial and administrative 

resources to promote the region's assets relative to pork and peanut production as well as 

attractions, shopping, accommodations and local dining along the "Salty Southern Route" 

throughout each locality. 

2. TERM: The initial term of this Tourism MOA shall be for a period commencing on the date 

the last Participating Entity executes this Tourism MOA and shall terminate on June 30, 2028. This 

Agreement shall be renewable for two (2) additional five-year terms ("Renewal Terms") unless 

otherwise terminated as more specifically set forth herein. 

Action Items - Page 10



3. FINANCIAL COMMITMENT: Each Participating Entity shall, subject to annual 

appropriation, appropriate funds in the following amounts from their respective tourism budgets 

each fiscal year to further advance and finance promotional and marketing efforts to support the 

"Salty Southern Route": 

FY 24  $1,500 

FY 25  $1,600 

FY 26  $1,700 

FY 27  $1,800 

FY 28  $1,900 

 

During each Renewal Year, the amount of appropriation shall increase by one hundred dollars 

($100.00) from the prior year. 

4. JOINT COMMITTEE. To further the goals of this agreement and ensure efficient 

promotion of the "Salty Southern Route," the Participating Entitles will form the Salty Southern 

Route Joint Committee ("Committee"). The Committee shall include one tourism professional 

from each Participating Entity. This Committee shall be tasked with: 

a) determining the most appropriate and efficient marketing strategies; 

b) reviewing and approving expenditures that promote the Salty Southern Route; and 

c) reviewing and approving contracts to promote the Salty Southern Route; and 

d)  developing a mechanism to capture statistical data on the effectiveness of the marketing 

efforts, for example, a virtual passport.    

 

The committee may establish meeting times, rules, and governing procedures in accordance with 

Robert's Rules of Order. 

5. FISCAL AGENT: Isle of Wight shall operate as the Fiscal Agent and shall be designated to 

authorize agreements with vendors. Each Participating Entity shall be billed by the Fiscal Agent on a fiscal 

year basis. Payment from the Participating Entities shall be made by July 31. 

6.  EQUITABLE DISTRIBUTION:  In order to ensure the equitable distribution of 

promotional and marketing efforts provided pursuant to this Agreement, each Participating Entity 

shall be limited to 5 posts per week on Salty Southern Route social media platforms.  In print 

materials, each Participating Entity shall be featured at least twice.   

7. PUBLIC PROCUREMENT ACT: The Committee shall follow the provisions of the Virginia 

Public Procurement Act. 

8. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT: The Committee shall follow the provisions of the Virginia 

Freedom of Information Act. 

Action Items - Page 11



9. TERMINATION: Following approval by its governing body, any Participating Entity may 

withdraw from this Tourism MOA upon providing ninety (90) days advanced written notice to the 

remaining Participating Entities.  Unless the remaining Participating Entities decide to terminate 

the Tourism MOA, this MOA shall remain in effect as to the remaining Participating Entities. 

Upon termination of this Tourism MOA by all Participating Entities, the Fiscal Agent shall 

cause an accounting to be made and shall distribute all remaining funds equally among the 

remaining Participating Entities. 

10. SEVERABILITY: Each provision of this Tourism MOA shall be separately enforceable, 

and the invalidity of one provision shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other 

provisions. This Tourism MOA shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with the laws of 

the Commonwealth of Virginia. 

11. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Tourism MOA constitutes the only agreement, and 

supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, both written and oral, among the parties with 

respect to the subject matter hereof. This Tourism MOA may not be amended or modified, except 

in a writing signed by all parties to this Tourism MOA. 

 

 

    [signature pages to follow] 

  

Action Items - Page 12



 

 

 

FRANKLIN SOUTHAMPTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, INC. 
 
       
President and CEO 
 
 
 

    [additional signature page follows] 
 
 
  

Action Items - Page 13



SURRY COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

County Administrator 

Approved as to Form: 

County Attorney 

[additional signature page follows] 

Action Items - Page 14



CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA 
 
       
City Manager 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
       
City Attorney 
 
 
 

     [additional signature page follows] 
 
  

Action Items - Page 15



ISLE OF WIGHT COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
 
       
County Administrator 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
       
County Attorney 
 
 
 
 

     [additional signature page follows] 
 
  

Action Items - Page 16



SUSSEX COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
 
       
County Administrator 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
       
County Attorney 
 

 

Action Items - Page 17



SUSSEX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

 

The Sussex County Board of Supervisors at its regular meeting on April 18, 2024 at 6:00 p.m., 

in the General District Courtroom, Sussex Judicial Center, 15098 Courthouse Road, Sussex, 

Virginia, will consider, and intends to take action upon, a proposed Ordinance to approve and 

enter into a Tourism Memorandum of Agreement in which certain localities participate in the 

promotion of the region’s assets relative to pork and peanut production and local dining along 

the “Salty Southern Route,” by pooling their financial and administrative resources. 

 

Persons desiring to speak should attend this meeting. Any person requiring physical or sensory 

assistance at the hearing should contact the County Administrator’s Office at 434-246-1000 a 

minimum of three business days before this meeting. A copy of the proposed Ordinance and 

Memorandum of Agreement is available for public inspection on the Sussex County website at 

www.sussexcountyva.gov or at the County Administrator’s Office, located at 20135 Princeton 

Road, Sussex, Virginia 23884, between the hours of 8:30 A.M. and 5:00 P.M., Monday through 

Friday. Questions may be directed to the David Conmy, Deputy County Administrator, at (434) 

246-4395 

 

 

 
 

Action Items - Page 18



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:   Action Item #6.03 
 
Subject:   Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission (TRRC) Grant Resolutions 
 
Board Meeting Date:  April 18 2024 
 
============================================================================== 
 
Summary:   On February 8, 2024, County staff submitted two applications to the TRRC’s Southside 
Economic Development Program for the following two projects: 

1. Sussex Megasite: Infrastructure Planning & Design (Project #4224) 
2. Sussex & Waverly Business District Revitalization (Project 4217) 

 
For the Megasite: Infrastructure Planning & Design Project, staff presented a high-level overview 
of this application to the Board of Supervisors during their November 16, 2023, meeting. This 
application is submitted as a companion application to a larger grant application submitted to 
the VA Economic Development Partnership (VEDP) for their VA Business Ready Sites Program 
(VBRSP). These grants – and other forthcoming grant applications – would help advance the 
shovel-readiness of the Sussex Megasite so that it can be positioned to meet most companies’ 
needs of being able to begin onsite operations within 18 to 24 months of selecting the site.  
 
For the Sussex & Waverly Business District Revitalization Project, staff has had a series of 
conversations with staff from the TRRC over the last 12+ months encouraging the County to apply 
for this specific investment strategy of their grant programs. Not only would this grant help the 
Town continue to capitalize on a variety of recent successes, it would also help make the Sussex 
Megasite a more attractive investment for most industrial prospects seeking quality of life and a 
sense of place in the Town which is the closest incorporated community to the Sussex Megasite. 
This grant application carries the endorsement of the Town of Waverly, and both parties envision 
all activities being managed by a professional consultant. 
 
Applications for funding from the TRRC require a signed resolution of the governing body 
responsible for implementing the project. Approval of these resolutions would satisfy that 
requirement. 
 
Copies of the two grant project activities have been included for more details. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff strongly recommends passage of the resolutions. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Resolutions Approving Application to the Virginia Tobacco Region Revitalization 
Commission FY 2024 Southern Virginia Program 

2. Sussex Megasite: Infrastructure Planning & Design – Project Details 
3. Sussex & Waverly Business District Revitalization – Project Details 

============================================================================== 
 

Action Items - Page 19



ACTION:  That the Board approves resolutions #24-47A and #24-47B. 
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

              

 
 
 
Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Fly  ___ ___    W. Jones ___ ___  
 
Futrell ___ ___     Seward ___ ___ 
  
D. Jones ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
 

White  ___ ___ 
(Tie Breaker)     

 

Action Items - Page 20



SUSSEX COUNTY 
RESOLUTION #24-47A 

 
At a Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Sussex held at the Courthouse 
therefore, on the 18th day of April 2024. 
       
     PRESENT:   VOTE: 
 
Wayne Jones, Chairman       
Steve White, Vice Chairman       
Thomas Baicy, III         
C. Eric Fly         
Alfred Futrell         
Phyllis Tolliver         
Rufus Tyler         
    

RESOLUTION APPROVING APPLICATION TO THE VIRGINIA TOBACCO REGION 
REVITALIZATION COMMISSION FY 2024 SOUTHERN VIRGINIA PROGRAM 

 
 WHEREAS, economic prosperity, a diversified employment base and an improved quality 
of life are among the highest annual goals and priorities of the Sussex County Board of 
Supervisors; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Sussex County has invested thousands of public dollars in an effort to meet 
the economic, social, development, and community growth needs of Sussex County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Sussex County Board of Supervisors has acquired the Industrial Mega-Site 
in Sussex County, Virginia and continues to develop it; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Virginia Tobacco Commission is accepting applications to establish grants 
for economic development projects in the Southern Virginia area of Virginia’s Tobacco’s region 
(“Program”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, in 2023 Sussex County was the recipient of $61,050 and $247,900 in grant 
funding from the Virginia Tobacco Commission and Virginia Economic Development partnership, 
respectively, that was matched with $76,050 in County funds for the “Sussex County: Megasite – 
Master Planning, Conceptual Engineering, & Water Line Extension (Project # 4111)” project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the master planning and conceptual engineering activities identified a series 
of infrastructure improvements that would help advance the shovel-readiness of the Sussex 
Megasite; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors wishes to apply to the Program for funding to support 
the design of utility infrastructure improvements identified from the previous project;  

Action Items - Page 21



 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors does hereby 
authorize and approve of the submission of the “Sussex County: Sussex Megasite: Infrastructure 
Planning & Design (Project # 4224) application”; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Sussex County Administrator, Richard Douglas, is hereby 
authorized and directed to execute all project-related documents and be responsible for the 
accuracy of the application and for the appropriate use of funds, should they be granted. 
 
Approved by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors and effective this 18th day of April, 2024. 
 

By: _____________________________  
                      Wayne O. Jones, Chairman 
 
Attest: 
 
_______________________ 
Clerk to the Board 

Action Items - Page 22



SUSSEX COUNTY 

RESOLUTION #24-47B 

At a Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Sussex held at the Courthouse therefore, on 

the 18th day of April 2024. 

PRESENT:   VOTE: 
 
Wayne Jones, Chairman       
Steve White, Vice Chairman       
Thomas Baicy, III         
C. Eric Fly         
Alfred Futrell         
Phyllis Tolliver         
Rufus Tyler         
    

RESOLUTION APPROVING APPLICATION TO THE VIRGINIA TOBACCO REGION 
REVITALIZATION COMMISSION FY 2024 SOUTHERN VIRGINIA PROGRAM 

 
 WHEREAS, economic prosperity, a diversified employment base and an improved quality 
of life are among the highest annual goals and priorities of the Sussex County Board of 
Supervisors; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Sussex County has invested thousands of public dollars in an effort to meet 
the economic, social, development, and community growth needs of Sussex County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Sussex County Board of Supervisors recognizes that placemaking and 
other community development efforts are an important strategy to support the advancement 
and attractiveness of the Sussex Megasite; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Virginia Tobacco Commission is accepting applications to establish grants 
for economic development projects in the Southern Virginia area of Virginia’s Tobacco’s region 
(“Program”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County in partnership with the Town of Waverly wishes to apply to the 
Program in an effort to support business district revitalization efforts in the Town of Waverly; 
and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors does hereby 
authorize and approve of the submission of the Sussex County: Sussex & Waverly Business 
District Revitalization (Project # 4217) application”; and 
 

Action Items - Page 23



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Sussex County Administrator, Richard Douglas, is hereby 
authorized and directed to execute all project-related documents and be responsible for the 
accuracy of the application and for the appropriate use of funds, should they be granted. 
Approved by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors and effective this16th day of April, 2024. 
 

 
By: _____________________________  

                      Wayne O. Jones, Chairman 
 
Attest: 
 
_______________________ 
Clerk to the Board 
 

Action Items - Page 24



Sussex County 
Details of Project Activities 

In order to deliver shovel-ready sites for interested businesses as quickly as possible, all of the project 
activities listed below are focused on alleviating long lead times associated with capacity planning, design 
of infrastructure, and easement acquisition. The overall goal is to have designs, etc. in place for a majority 
of the critical infrastructure components of the Sussex Megasite so that – with the exception of the Route 
460 water line – construction of such improvements could reasonably occur within the usual 18 to 24 
month timeline expected by most investors. 

From a budgetary perspective, Sussex County is applying for funds from the TRRC to serve as a portion of 
the required local match for VEDP’s VBRSP grant program. If successfully awarded funding from VEDP and 
the TRRC, Sussex County will then use these awards as leverage to secure additional funding from other 
organizations including USEDA, USDA Rural Development, and others. 

A timeline that summarizes the intended monthly progression of activities and associated outcomes for 
this project is included at the end of this document. 

a) Project Management 

Given the County’s limited staff dedicated to economic development activities, Sussex will again 
outsource project management and oversight of any VBRSP grant award in FY24. As with the 2023 grant, 
timeline management, reporting, review of deliverables, and coordination and execution of scope by 
consultants will be the primary elements of this activity. 

(b) Route 460 Waterline Design 

This project will entail design of about 14 miles of 20” waterline from the existing Prince George County 
water system to the Megasite. There are two routes being considered (i.e. one following a VEPCO power 
easement, the other along U.S. Route 460), but the final route will be determined after further evaluation 
of  how  to  achieve  the  most  viable  and  cost-effective  route  for  the  waterline. Professional 
engineering services will include: (1) routing study, (2) design, (3) surveying, (4) geotechnical analysis, (5) 
subsurface utility engineering, (6) legal/owner administration, and (7) environmental delineation and 
permitting. The design phase would start with a routing study to further evaluate environmental, 
easement, constructability, and other critical factors in determining the waterline alignment. Additional 
engineering plans will be necessary for a proposed 1.5 MG water tank and 4.5 MGD booster pump station 
(BPS). These costs are broken down in greater detail below. 

Total Estimated Costs (Source: Timmons): approximately $6.4 million to $7.8 million 

• Routing Study Costs: $262,586 to $284,679 
• Design Costs: $3,807,504 to $4,127,839 
• Easement Acquisition Costs: $1,775,000 to $2,825,000 
• Water Tank and BPS Design Costs: $581,715 

These activities may be affected by ongoing conversations between Sussex County and other key partners 
including Prince George County and a private water utility in the region. Sussex County will update TRRC 
and other relevant parties, as these matters unfold and reach a more definitive conclusion on approach. 

c) Designs for Treated Wastewater Facilities 

While treated wastewater is not an ideal, permanent solution for increasing the volume of water available 
to the Megasite, it is one that should still be planned for - as both an interim solution and attractive option 
for “green” companies. Based on the Feasibility Study completed by The Wooten Company in 2023, Level 
2 reclaimed water could be provided to the Sussex County Megasite with minor improvements to the 
Atlantic Waste Management (AWM) Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF), the Black Swamp WWTF, 

Action Items - Page 25



and the Spring Branch WWTF. The Black Swamp and Atlantic Waste Management WWTFs will produce 
the reclaimed water, and the influent from Spring Branch WWTF will be diverted to the Black Swamp 
WWTF. The treated reclaimed water produced from these facilities could be as much as 1.9 MGD, which 
would then be stored in a reclaimed water storage tank and distributed to the Megasite. The following is 
a breakdown of the project components: 

Phase 1 - Design (Black Swamp WWTF Improvements) 

• Expand Black Swamp WWTF to 1.60 MGD (this was already designed and permitted, but 
the reuse permit will need to be submitted and approved) 

• Upgrade Black Swamp WWTF’s chlorine disinfection system so it can meet Total Residual 
Chlorine (TRC) requirements for Level 2 water reuse 

• Design 1,100 L.F. of 18-inch reclaimed water line 
• Design new 0.50-MG reclaimed water storage tank 
• Total Cost (Source: The Wooten Company): $560,000 

Phase 2 - Design (AWM WWTF Improvements) 

• Design upgrade to Atlantic Waste Management WWTF to include a new post-chlorine 
disinfection unit and new lab equipment to measure E. coli and TRC. 

• Design 870-gpm Reclaimed Water Pump Station with 17,700 L.F. of 12-inch reclaimed 
water line 

• Total Cost (Source: The Wooten Company): $553,000 

(d) Electrical Demand Study 

During recent discussions of the Megasite with Prince George Electric Co-op (PGEC) related to prospect 
inquiries, it was determined that upgrades to the existing power substation were likely needed to 
accommodate significant power demands. While the existing PGEC substation is a source of reliable 
electricity, the County has observed that a number of prospects (e.g. Project Braveheart) may require 
“hyper loads” of electricity greater than what the existing substation can support in ideal time-to-market 
scenarios. The facility is also now 40 years old. The discussions with PGEC also revealed that design of 
facility upgrades, ordering of new transformers, and approval and construction of an expanded substation 
can take upwards of five years. Accordingly, the County would like to proceed with an analysis of the 
existing substation, in concert with understanding the electrical needs currently required in the market 
by various industries to ensure that continuous, reliable, and redundant power is available at the 
Megasite. 

Total Estimated Cost (Source: PGEC): $250,000 

(e) Gas Pipeline and POD Design 

Based on the outcomes of the Natural Gas Feasibility and Front-End Engineering Design (FEED) study 
undertaken in the 2023 VBRSP project, it was recommended that the original scope of the project be 
refocused on evaluation of the Point of Delivery (POD) – where the local distribution company (Columbia 
Gas) and the interstate transmission pipeline (TC Energy) interconnect – rather than to proceed with 30% 
design of the pipeline. Specifically, Columbia Gas explained that any upgrades that may be needed to the 
Point of Delivery (to accommodate natural gas flow rates associated with industrial growth) involve a 
lengthy process of evaluation, design, and execution of an upgraded or new POD. In addition, approvals 
from regulatory agencies and TC Energy will be required, resulting in lead times of up to 24 months; thus, 
the scope change was made so the POD study can be completed under the 2023 grant award first. 
Subsequently, design of the recommended POD and distribution line will be undertaken through this grant 
request. The specific tasks included in the project are: 

Action Items - Page 26



• Evaluation of existing POD footprint for retrofit of new equipment based on 
estimated increase in customer loads 

• Relocation of POD (if needed to accommodate new/larger equipment) 
• Design (90%) of site plan for POD to meet new flow conditions to serve Sussex 

Megasite, including inlet fire gate valve, filtration, measurement, heater, 
regulation, overpressure protection and odorization to meet TC Energy 
specifications 

• Design (60%) of the distribution line, helping to reduce lead times for natural gas 
delivery for prospective users 

• Total Cost (Source: Columbia Gas of Virginia): $686,000 

(f) Well exploration/well development to identify other potential water sources 
(i.e. aquifers) 

Virginia DEQ has suggested exploration of an alternative aquifer that isn’t subject to the same limitations 
as the Potomac Aquifer. The credibility of this recommendation was recently reinforced when the County 
learned others were looking into the Yorktown-Eastover Aquifer as an alternative source within the 
region. Accordingly, the County would like to hire a hydrogeologist to perform a groundwater exploration 
study using non-intrusive geophysical survey and resistivity imaging. Once that is complete, a certified 
groundwater well system provider would be engaged to sequentially drill and test the most favorable well 
sites, up to 3 initially, on the 1,130-acre Megasite property in hopes of identifying other potential aquifer 
sources to serve this area. If viable options are revealed, the County will examine this source in greater 
detail. Even if no other viable options are identified, the results will at least provide a level of 
conclusiveness from a due diligence perspective. 

Estimated costs are provided below: 

• Groundwater Exploration Study: $50,000 
• Test Well Drilling: $750,000 
• Total Cost (Source: Timmons): $800,000 

(g) Route 460 Waterline Economic Impact & Market Study 

Sussex County would like to hire a professional economist to calculate the regional economic impact of 
extending a permanent water supply along the Route 460 corridor in Prince George and Sussex Counties. 
With over 2,800 acres of active economic development sites along this key highway, as well as 3,200 
additional acres previously identified by the Commonwealth for site development in Sussex County, these 
sites present a significant opportunity for economic growth; however, these properties are all hampered 
by one critical deficiency – water – thereby limiting the level of shovel-readiness they can offer. This study 
will provide credible projections that Sussex County can use as (1) strategic leverage for securing other 
funding sources to construct the waterline, (2) build momentum for current efforts to organize and 
coordinate economic development opportunities among localities near Route 460, and (3) assist the 
localities and other partners involved with determining a return on investment for such a significant 
infrastructure project. 

Total Cost (Source: Mangum Economics): $36,000 

Action Items - Page 27



Sussex County ‐ Megasite Utility Designs and Studies ‐ VBRSP 2024 Timeline

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
Project Management
Route 460 Water Line Design

Routing Study
Field Services
Preliminary Engineering
Construction Documents
Easement Acquisition
Regulatory Approvals and Permits

Designs for Treated Wastewater Facilities
Phase 1

Preparation of VPDES Permit Modification 
Application for Water Reuse
VADEQ Review/Approval of VPDES Permit 
Modification for Water Reuse
Pre‐Bid Engineering Services: Preliminary Design 
Phase
Pre‐Bid Engineering Services: Final Design Phase
Prepare all necessary state and local permits for 
project
VADEQ Reviews and Approves all necessary state 
and local permits for project

Phase 2
Preparation of VPDES Permit Modification 
Application for Water Reuse
VADEQ Review/Approval of VPDES Permit 
Modification for Water Reuse
Pre‐Bid Engineering Services: Preliminary Design 
Phase
Pre‐Bid Engineering Services: Final Design Phase
Prepare all necessary state and local permits for 
project
VADEQ Reviews and Approves all necessary state 
and local permits for project

2024 2025 2026

* Please note that this timeline assumes that a Performance Agreement for this project will be executed by May 2024. Any changes in this date will result in a comensurate change in the proposed timeline. Page 1 of 2
Action Items - Page 28



Sussex County ‐ Megasite Utility Designs and Studies ‐ VBRSP 2024 Timeline

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2024 2025 2026

Electrical Demand Study
Procurement
Identify Location and Necessary Permits/Remediation
Conduct Electrical Demand Study
Final Report

Well exploration/well development
Groundwater Exploration Study
VDH Well Site Permitting
DEQ Pre‐application and Test Plan
Test Well Drilling

Economic Impact Study: Route 460 Water Line
Procurement
Data Collection
Analyze Results
Report

Gas Line POD Design and Construction
Engineering and Design

TC Energy Prospective Report
30% Design (IFA)
60% Design (IFR)
90% Design (IFB)
100% Design (IFC)

Permits
Easement Acquisition

* Please note that this timeline assumes that a Performance Agreement for this project will be executed by May 2024. Any changes in this date will result in a comensurate change in the proposed timeline. Page 2 of 2
Action Items - Page 29



Sussex County & Town of Waverly 
Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission 
Business District Revitalization Project 
2-6-2024 
 

Project Description 

The Town of Waverly and Sussex County are requesting approximately $33,100 in funding from the 
Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission for a Business District Revitalization Project. These funds will 
be matched with funds from the County and Town and used to conduct several consultant-managed 
planning and capacity building activities to encourage occupancy of vacant, underutilized buildings in 
downtown Waverly and to create more vibrancy and economic activity in the Town overall. All of these 
activities would have the important added benefit of enhancing quality of life, which the County and Town 
consider to be fundamental to ensuring the successful development of the Sussex Megasite, which is less 
than 2 miles west of downtown Waverly. 

Miles B. Carpenter Museum 

First, the Parties would like to augment existing revitalization efforts undertaken by the Town of Waverly 
with its recent acquisition of the Miles B. Carpenter Museum. This facility is a Virginia Historic Landmark, 
in the National Register of Historic Places, and a National Folk Art Site as designated by The Folk Art Society 
of America. Originally serving as his primary residence, Miles B. Carpenter bequeathed the building to the 
community upon his death with the intention for his house and attached property to be used in such a 
manner that all peoples could enjoy. Historically, the Museum served and promoted the arts in the 
surrounding area and also celebrated the peanut agricultural heritage of the region. Similar to other 
tourism-based organizations across the country, the Museum went inactive as a result of the COVID-19 
pandemic and never re-opened. Consequently, the building fell into disrepair and became an eyesore for 
the community, especially with its significant frontage along the U.S. Route 460 corridor, which averages 
over 13,000 vehicle passings daily. The Town has re-established a Museum Board of Directors including a 
Board Chair with significant experience managing a private arts store in nearby Wakefield. Additionally, 
through its owns funds and Virginia Tourism Corporation ARPA funds awarded to the County, the Town 
has brought the building back into a state of good repair and improved the surrounding 8-acres of the 
property. More work is needed to modernize the building and surrounding grounds to bring it back into a 
productive, value-added use, but the space has already hosted several successful community events with 
others planned. An old blueprint of the property has been included at the end of this narrative for 
reference. 

As a next step, the Town would like to identify the remaining needs of the building and plan for future 
remodeling/upgrade needs to maximize its use and benefit to the community. The Town and County 
envision the space developed so that it can host an artist-in-residency program; community markets 
showcasing local artisans, craftspeople, and agricultural products; and other cultural events. According to 
Americans for the Arts, the arts drive an increased tax base, stronger social networks and community 
cohesion, reduced health risks, higher empathy, and more community pride – all of which will be essential 
to enhancing quality of life in Waverly, Sussex County, and the region. Similar efforts based in arts and 
agriculture elsewhere in Virginia have helped revitalize communities and create attractive downtowns, 
such as The Station in Floyd, Virginia, so there is evidence that this model works. These planning and 
capacity building activities will help ensure greater success in executing this vision while also safeguarding 
public and private dollars that may be needed to financially support future phases of this effort.  

Action Items - Page 30



Sussex County & Town of Waverly 
Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission 
Business District Revitalization Project 
2-6-2024 
 
Overall, from a project activity and deliverable perspective, the County and Town would like to do the 
following (estimated costs and time to complete included): 

1. Conceptual Architectural and Engineering Design Remodeling Plan: $2,500; 90 days 
2. Phase I Environmental Assessment: $5,000; 60 days 
3. Title Exam: $500; 60 days 
4. Conceptual Elevations and Interior Renderings: $1,250; 90 days 
5. Art Programming Feasibility Study: $7,500; 120 days 
6. An Operational Plan: $6,000; 120 days 
7. A Marketing Program to Solicit Space Operators: $2,500; 150 days 
8. Project Management/Consultant: $5,050; 180 days 

Total: $30,300; 180 days 

Old Melody Inn Property 

A high volume of automobile traffic that traverses U.S. Route 460 on a daily basis, especially during the 
summer months as travelers use the highway as a means to access Virginia Beach and the Outer Banks. 
The Town sees that as a significant tourism and hospitality opportunity and has contemplated 
development of a hotel to capitalize on some of this traffic. At one time, the Town did have a small 
roadside motor hotel, The Melody Inn, at the intersection of U.S. Route 460 and E. Main Street (see 
postcard photo at the end of this narrative). Over time, the building fell into disrepair and abandonment, 
and the Town used its own funds to demolish the structure, remediate asbestos, and remove an 
underground storage oil tank. More recently, the Town acquired the parcels (estimated to be about 1 
acre) associated with the Melody Inn through the public tax foreclosure process. Ownership of the 
property by the Town represents a significant step in realizing this lodging development, which is sorely 
lacking. A quick search of available, more modern hotels in the vicinity of Waverly suggests that the 
nearest traditional hotels are about a 30 minute drive from the Town. Furthermore, as it relates to the 
U.S. Route 460 corridor, the nearest hotels are 30 minutes to the northwest in Petersburg and more than 
45 minutes to the southeast in Suffolk. Lack of a lodging amenity in the Town detracts from its ability to 
promote tourism and host visitors contemplating investment in the Sussex Megasite. 

The owner of an adjacent restaurant property (estimated to be about 0.4 acres) has also expressed an 
interest in working with the Town to redevelop their property and construct a new restaurant building. 
This restaurant property sits right at the corner of U.S. Route 460 and E. Main Street, so it has significant 
street frontage, visibility, and serves as an important gateway into the Town. Consequently, there’s a 
possibility for the Town to coordinate with the property owner, expand the footprint of the hotel concept, 
and provide a more localized food and beverage service through the proposed hotel. Providing a more 
unique type of hotel experience has been a big success in other rural communities across Virginia, such as 
The Inn at Blackstone in the Town of Blackstone and The Western Front Hotel in the Town of St. Paul. The 
Town has had conversations with professionals in the hospitality industry who specialize in creating these 
types of unique lodging experiences. A hospitality study provided by one of these professionals would 
help the Town better understand the market demand for this use and ensure greater success of this 

Action Items - Page 31



Sussex County & Town of Waverly 
Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission 
Business District Revitalization Project 
2-6-2024 
 
concept. This information could then be bundled with financial and graphic information into marketing 
materials for potential investors and hotel operators to consider. 

From a project activity and deliverable perspective, the County and Town would like to do the following 
(estimated costs and time to complete included): 

1. Hospitality Study: $15,000; 90 days 
2. Conceptual Elevations: $1,500; 90 days 
3. Construction Budget and Pro-forma: $3,500; 120 days 
4. Title Exam: $500; 60 days 
5. Project Management/Consultant: $4,100; 120 days 

Total: $24,600; 120 days 

Co-working Space 

Finally, the Town and County would like to explore the development of a co-working space at a nearby 
building on the north side of West Main Street on the second floor above an existing pharmacy. The space 
appears to be in decent condition so significant upgrades would not likely be necessary. At least 6 separate 
spaces could be rented to potential business tenants. The Town received a Community Business Launch 
(CBL) award from DHCD and has committed to creating 3 new or expanded businesses and 5 employees. 
The Town and County would like to be prepared to accommodate additional workspace needs beyond 
the deliverables from the CBL grant. While this space is located on the second floor of an existing building 
(thereby unable to accommodate CBL awardees), the Parties anticipate there may be demand for 
additional space throughout the community. An alternative, second space may be needed for any spillover 
effect that the added business activity is expected to create and to accommodate remote workers seeking 
short-term temporary and/or more affordable workspace.  

The building is privately owned, so a public-private partnership between the building owner and local 
representatives would need to be developed. Conversations regarding this concept have already been 
suggested to the building owners who support the concept and this application (see support letter from 
CHP Enterprises, LLC). One of the building owners is also very active in the community and currently serves 
on Waverly Town Council. The Parties would like to use funding to explore the feasibility of developing a 
public-private partnership with the building owners while also identifying improvements to the space so 
that it would be attractive to most co-working ventures. 

From a project activity and deliverable perspective, the County and Town would like to do the following 
(estimated costs and time to complete included): 

1. Feasibility Study and Operational Plan for Public-Private Co-working Space: $7,500; 60 days 
2. Measured Drawings and Conceptual Interior Renderings: $2,000; 60 days 
3. Project Management/Consultant: $1,800; 60 days 

Total: $11,300; 60 days 

Action Items - Page 32



Action Items - Page 33



Action Items - Page 34



Action Items - Page 35



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:   Action Item #6.04 
 
Subject:  CPMT Position Request 

 
Board Meeting Date:  April 18 2024 
============================================================================= 
Summary:  At its February regular meeting the Children’s Services Act (CSA) Community Policy 
and Management Team (CPMT) voted to support the request for an additional CSA position (CSA 
Management Specialist) at an approximate cost of $65,000 (the CPMT is currently chaired by the 
County Administrator and includes senior representatives of the county school system, DSS, DJJ, 
CSB, and VDH).  CSA Coordinator Titiana Nicholson requested this position at the “big ticket” 
budget session in January (her memo is attached for your review), but the CPMT is requesting 
that the position be funded immediately to address current CSA needs.  Specifically, this 
additional position will meet the following needs identified by the Virginia Office of Children’s 
Services in recent program audit findings: 1) utilization review of current services; and 2) back-
up CSA Coordinator.   
 
Utilization review is a critical but time intensive function, periodically reviewing services provided 
to children and making recommended changes as needed, which can also reduce state and local 
CSA costs and avoid OCS compliance penalties.  Having a staff person who can also serve in a 
back-up capacity and assume the role of CSA Coordinator when needed is also critical to the CSA 
program and the ability to meet various eligibility deadlines and provide continuity and 
consistency in program operations.  The number of children receiving CSA services, the 
variety/complexity of services, and the costs of these services continue to increase rapidly, 
supporting the need for additional personnel to properly administer the CSA program.  However, 
please note that no additional state funds are available to support an additional position, and the 
requested $65,000 (salary and benefits for one full-time position) would be the responsibility of 
the county. 
 
Recommendation:  That the Board a CSA Management Specialist position at a total cost of 
$65,000. 
 
Attachment: CSA Coordinator memo 
============================================================================= 
ACTION:  That the Board approves a CSA Management Specialist position at a total cost of 
$65,000. 
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 
Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Baicy  ___ ___    W. Jones ___ ___ 
Fly  ___ ___    Tolliver ___ ___ 
Futrell  ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___  
    White  ___ ___ 

Action Items - Page 36



Action Items - Page 37



Action Items - Page 38



Action Items - Page 39



Action Items - Page 40



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Action Item #6.05 

Subject:  Courthouse Heating and Air System Software Replacement 

Board Meeting Date:  April 18 2024 

============================================================================== 

Summary:  Attached for your consideration is a proposal from Trane Controls for the replacement 
of existing heating and air system controllers in the courthouse, at the cost of $89,880.  While 
the entire heating and air system should be replaced within the next few years, the controllers 
are critical to the system and will be compatible with a new system.  The current controllers are 
obsolete, with the software license expiring in September 2019, and the temperature controls 
can no longer be adjusted remotely or manually, requiring a costly vendor service visit each time 
temperatures need to be adjusted.  For this reason, staff is recommending that we move forward 
as soon as possible with this portion of the system replacement.  Approximately $60,000 has 
been placed in capital reserves for replacement of the system, which could be used to cover the 
majority of this project cost.  A budget amendment is attached for your consideration. 

Recommendation:  That the Board approves Budget Amendment #24-49 and Trane Controls 
proposal at a cost not to exceed $89,880. 

Attachment: Budget Amendment #24-49and Copy of Trane Controls Proposal 

============================================================================= 

ACTION:  That the Board approves Budget Amendment #24-49 and Trane Controls proposal at a 
cost not to exceed $89,880. 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 

Baicy ___ ___ W. Jones ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Tolliver ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

White ___ ___ 

Action Items - Page 41



RESOLUTION #24-49 

FY24 BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors that the following budget 

amendment for Administration be and hereby is made for the period of July 1, 2023 through June 

30, 2024.  This resolution will appropriate local reserve funds to the Public Works Department 

FY24 annual operational budget for courthouse heating and air replacement.   

 

FUND # 100 

GENERAL FUND 

 

REVENUE 

 Fund 135 Local      $33,115 

 Total Revenues      $33,115 

 

EXPENDITURE 

 Fund 100 Public Works     $33,115 

 Total Expenditures      $33,115 

 

Adopted this 18th day of April, 2024. 

 

 

         ________________________ 

Wayne O. Jones, Chairman 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________ 

Shilton R. Butts, Clerk 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

 

 

Action Items - Page 42



Action Items - Page 43



Action Items - Page 44



Action Items - Page 45



Action Items - Page 46



Action Items - Page 47



Action Items - Page 48



Action Items - Page 49



Action Items - Page 50


	#1 4 18 2024 BOS Agenda
	#2.01 3 21 2024 Minutes 2
	#2.02 Warrants & Vouchers
	#2.03-5 Consent Agenda
	#2.03 Treasurer's Report & Fin Update
	#2.04-1 BD Cover
	#2.04-2 March 2024 Monthly Report
	#2.04-3 SD Cover
	#2.04-4 March 2024 BOS Report
	#2.05-2 BOS 2-23-2023 Minutes Excerpt

	#3 Recognition
	#3.01-1 VDOT
	#3.01-2 VDOT Six Year Plan List
	#3.01-3 RESOLUTION  - VDOT
	#3.01-4 Unpaved Roads- Priorities
	#3.02 Board Meeting Action Form - VBRSP 2023 Grant Award Project Summary and 2024 Grant Proposal

	#4 Public Hearing
	#4.01-1 Board Meeting Action Form#2024-01
	#4.01-2 Staff Report - Eastern Woodlands ZA#2024-01 - BOS.4.18.24

	#5 Appointments
	#5.01-1 Brightpoint appt
	#5.01-2 reappointment- 2024 Sussex County -Winfield (003)
	#5.02-1 CDAAA

	#6 Action Items
	#6.01-1 contract prof svcs rfp
	#6.01-2 23109 SXCH Letter of Proposal 2024 03 14 FINAL R1
	#6.02-1 Board Meeting Action Form - Salty Southern Route
	#6.02-2 Ordinance for Tourism MOU.2023
	#6.02-3 SSRt MOU 2024 - clean
	#6.02-4 Salty Southern Route Ordinance Public Notice (003)
	#6.03-1 Board Meeting Action Form - Resolutions for TRRC FY2024 Southern Virginia Program
	#6.03-2 Sussex - BOS Resolution - TRRC Megasite Application - April 2024 (002)
	#6.03-3 Sussex - BOS Resolution - TRRC Waverly Business District Revitalization Application - April 2024
	#6.03-4 Sussex County_VBRSPandTRRC_Project Activites_Details
	a) Project Management
	(b) Route 460 Waterline Design
	c) Designs for Treated Wastewater Facilities
	(d) Electrical Demand Study
	(e) Gas Pipeline and POD Design
	(f) Well exploration/well development to identify other potential water sources (i.e. aquifers)
	(g) Route 460 Waterline Economic Impact & Market Study

	#6.03-5 Waverly - TRRC Business District Revitalization - Project Description - FINAL
	#6.04-1 CPMT
	#6.04-2 CPMT Letter
	#6.05-1 Courthouse heating & ai
	#6.05-2 Public Works BA-Courthouse Heating  AC
	#6.05-3 Trane




